

SALISH BEHAVIORAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES ORGANIZATION ADVISORY BOARD MEETING.

Providing Behavioral Health Services in Clallam, Jefferson and Kitsap Counties

DATE: Friday, December 1, 2023

TIME: 10:00 AM – 12:00 PM

LOCATION: Cedar Room, 7 Cedars Hotel

270756 Hwy 101, Sequim, WA 98382

LINK TO JOIN BY COMPUTER OR PHONE APP:

Please use this link to download ZOOM to your computer or phone: https://zoom.us/support/download.

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88389419000

Meeting ID: 883 8941 9000

USE PHONE NUMBER and MEETING ID TO JOIN BY PHONE:

Dial by your location: 1-253-215-8782

Meeting ID: 883 8941 9000

A GE N D A

Salish Behavioral Health Administrative Services Organization – Advisory Board

- 1. Call To Order
- 2. Announcements/Introductions
- 3. Opportunity to Address the Board on Agenda Topics (limited to 3 minutes each)
- Approval of Agenda
- 5. Approval of SBH-ASO Advisory Board Meeting Minutes for August 4, 2023 (Attachment 5)
- Action Items
 - a. Advisory Board Member Term Extension
- 7. Informational Items
 - a. Review of 2024 Meetings
 - b. January June 2024 Block Grant Plans
 - c. Annual Code of Ethics Training and Document Review (Attachments 8.c.1 & 8.c.2)
 - d. Washington State COD Conference Discussion led by Helen Havens
 - e. Reimbursement Process for Board Members
 - f. Board Member Recruitment
 - g. Naloxone Update
- 8. Opportunity for Public Comment (limited to 3 minutes each)
- 9. Adjournment

ACRONYMS

ACH Accountable Community of Health

ASAM Criteria used to determine substance usedisorder treatment

BHAB Behavioral Health Advisory Board

BH-ASO Behavioral Health Administrative Services Organization

BHO Behavioral Health Organization, replaced the Regional SupportNetwork

CAP Corrective Action Plan

CMS Center for Medicaid & Medicare Services (federal)

COVID-19 Coronavirus Disease 2019

DBHR Division of Behavioral Health & Recovery
DCFS Division of Child & Family Services
DCR Designated Crisis Responder

DDA Developmental Disabilities Administration

DSHS Department of Social and Health Services

E&T Evaluation and Treatment Center (i.e., AUI, YIU)

EBP Evidence Based Practice

EPSDT Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment

EQRO External Quality Review Organization FIMC Full Integration of Medicaid Services

FYSPRT Family, Youth and System Partner Round Table HARPS Housing and Recovery through Peer Services

HCA Health Care Authority

HCS Home and Community Services

HIPAA Health Insurance Portability & Accountability Act
HRSA Health and Rehabilitation Services Administration

IMD Institutes for the Mentally Diseased

IS Information Services ITA Involuntary Treatment Act MAT **Medical Assisted Treatment** MCO Managed Care Organization MHBG Mental Health Block Grant MOU Memorandum of Understanding OCH Olympic Community of Health OPT Opiate Treatment Program OST Opiate Substitution Treatment

PACT Program of Assertive Community Treatment

PATH Programs to Aid in the Transition from Homelessness

PIHP Prepaid Inpatient Health Plans
PIP Performance Improvement Project

P&P Policies and Procedures

QUIC Quality Improvement Committee RCW Revised Code Washington

RFP, RFQ Requests for Proposal, Requests for Qualifications

SABG Substance Abuse Block Grant

SAPT Substance Abuse Prevention Treatment

SBH-ASO Salish Behavioral Health Administrative Services Organization

SUD Substance Use Disorder

SYNC Salish Youth Network Collaborative

UM Utilization ManagementVOA Volunteers of America

WAC Washington Administrative Code

WM Withdrawal ManagementWSH Western State Hospital, Tacoma

Full listing of definitions and acronyms



SALISH BEHAVIORAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES ORGANIZATION ADVISORY BOARD MEETING

Providing Behavioral Health Services in Clallam, Jefferson and Kitsap Counties

December 1, 2023

Action Items

A. ADVISORY BOARD MEMBER TERM EXTENSION

Sandy Goodwick's current term expires on December 31, 2023. Sandy has expressed interest in continuing her service. She would be eligible for a three (3) year extension of service (January 1, 2024 – December 31, 2026). Seeking board approval for the extension.

Informational Items

A. <u>REVIEW OF 2024 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH ADVISORY BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE</u>

The Advisory Board is scheduled to meet on the following dates in 2024:

Friday, March 1

Friday, May 3

Friday, July 12

Friday, September 13

Friday, November 1

B. JANUARY 2024 TO JUNE 2024 BLOCK GRANT PLANS

Block Grant Plans are reviewed and approved every 6 months due to contract changes. We are unable to provide the plans today due to pending budget information. We do not anticipate significant changes as the funding approved during the RFP process is reflected in these plans. We anticipate plans being completed by mid-December. The next Behavioral Health Advisory Board Meeting is scheduled in March. We have 2 options:

- 1. Call a meeting in January specifically to review and approve the plans
- 2. Review at the March meeting for approval

C. ANNUAL CODE OF ETHICS TRAINING AND DOCUMENT REVIEW

The Behavioral Health Advisory Board is due for annual Code of Ethics training. Each BHAB member is asked to sign and return the agreement upon review of documents provided.

D. WASHINGTON STATE COD CONFERENCE DISCUSSION

Helen Havens attended the Washington State Behavioral Health Conference. Helen will share information gathered with the full board.

E. REIMBURSEMENT PROCESS FOR BOARD MEMBERS

The new form for reimbursement is available. This allows for easy submission of requests for mileage or other approved reimbursement. Receipts can be photographed on a cell phone or scanned and attached.

F. BOARD MEMBER RECRUITMENT

Opportunity to discuss ideas for recruitment of Board members.

Current Advisory Board Openings:

- 1 in Clallam County
- 2 in Jefferson County
- 1 in Kitsap County
- 1 Tribal Representative

G. NALOXONE UPDATE

Salish BHASO has 10 naloxone cabinets to distribute around the region. We are working to identify current resources and partnerships. To date, interest has been expressed by Quileute Tribe and Kitsap Transit.

MINUTES OF THE SALISH BEHAVIORAL HEALTH ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES ORGANIZATION ADVISORY BOARD

Friday, August 4, 2023 10:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. Hybrid Meeting Cedar Room, 7 Cedars Hotel 270756 Hwy 101, Seguim, WA 98382

CALL TO ORDER –Jon Stroup, SBH-ASO Behavioral Advisory Board Chair called the meeting to order at 10:14 am

INTRODUCTIONS – Self introductions were conducted around the room.

ANNOUNCEMENTS - None.

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON AGENDA TOPICS – None.

APPROVAL of AGENDA -

MOTION: Sandy Goodwick moved to approve the agenda as presented. Diane Pfeifle seconded the motion. <u>Motion carried unanimously.</u>

APPROVAL of MINUTES -

MOTION: Helen Havens moved to approve the meeting minutes as submitted for the April 7, 2023 meeting. Mary Beth Lagenaur seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

ACTION ITEMS

> APPROVAL OF FEDERAL BLOCK GRANT PLANS

Standard Block Grant

SBH-ASO is presenting updated Block Grant plans for July 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023, and seeks the Board's approval of these plans. Both plans align with the calendar year 2023 budget which was approved by the Executive Board.

Mental Health Block Grant (MHBG)

MHBG plan provides funding for the crisis system and transportation. Crisis services include crisis hotline and interpreter services. The plan format from HCA includes crisis services under the "Acute Intensive Services" category. The MHBG plan also identifies an estimated of the number of people to be served in each category. SBH-ASO Administration allowance is also included. Allocations are in line with the previous 6-month allocation. MHBG Co-Responder is a required category, and the allocation amount is pre-set by the Health Care Authority.

Substance Abuse Block Grant (SABG)

PPW (Pregnant and Parenting Women) Outreach is a required category for all SABG plans. A significant amount of funding is allocated for crisis services, which is categorized under "brief intervention" on this template. Brief intervention includes mobile crisis outreach services.

Interim services is a required category for all SABG Plans. This line item is limited as there has not historically been a need for interim services in the Salish region. Therapeutic Intervention Services for Children is also a required category and specifically intended for services to children in residential facilities serving Pregnant and Parenting Women (PPW).

Funding is also allocated to both Sub-acute withdrawal management and Intensive Inpatient Residential Treatment which are line items under the "Out of Home Residential Services" category.

Under the "Recovery Supports" category, the following line items are allocated funding, Transportation for PPW, Transportation and Childcare Services. Both Transportation for PPW and Childcare Services are required categories.

Under the "Other SABG activities" funding is allocated to for Interpreter Services and SBH-ASO Administrative allowance. SABG Co-Responder is a required category, and the allocation amount is pre-set by the Health Care Authority

ARPA Block Grant

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Block Grant is an additional one-time allocation of block grant funding. This additional funding is driven by federal legislation passed in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. This funding is awarded for July 1, 2023, to September 30, 2025. The plans presented today are an estimate of anticipated activities and investments to occur over the next 2 years. These plans will likely be amended at least once during this 2-year period.

ARPA MHBG

A significant amount of funding has been allocated to Assisted Outpatient Treatment (AOT) Services. This is a unique category included in response to recent state legislation directing the statewide expansion of AOT. Funding is allocated to Individual Evidenced-based therapies which encompasses outpatient treatment services. A small allocation is set aside for transportation. The final category of Workforce Development/Conferences includes the RFP award for Peninsula Behavioral Health, SBH-ASO sponsored trainings and SBH-ASO Administrative costs.

The Crisis Services Set-aside, Peer Pathfinders and Addition of CPC to MCR Team (Certified Peer Counselor addition to Mobile Crisis Teams) are required categories with allocations preset by the Health Care Authority.

ARPA SABG

The majority of ARPA SABG funding, \$300,000 of \$383,000, was awarded to providers via the recent block grant RFP. These RFP awards span multiple outpatient treatment and recovery support categories within this block grant plan.

Funding is allocated to Expansion of Peer-Based Recovery Support Services, in accordance with RFP awards. Under Prevention and Wellness, the line items of PPW Outreach and Tuberculosis Screening are required. Under Engagement Services, the 3 lines items of Assessment, Engagement and Referral, and Interim Services, are allocated in accordance with RFP awards. Under Outpatient Services, both Individual Therapy and Group Therapy are allocated in accordance with the RFP awards. Under Community Support, the line item of Supported Employment is allocated in accordance with the RFP Award. Therapeutic Intervention Services for Children is a required category. Under Out of Home Residential Services, Intensive Inpatient Residential Treatment is allocated.

Under Recovery Supports, Transportation for PPW, Transportation and Childcare Services are allocated. Under Other SABG Activities, SBH-ASO Administrative Costs and Provider Training are included.

Peer Pathfinders is a required category with a pre-set allocation by the Health Care Authority.

Staff reviewed each Block Grant Plan, including anticipated budget allocations.

Discussion around co-response services in West Jefferson County specific to a recent incident involving an individual in crisis. Concern raised about training provided to police departments on available resources, including accessing the Salish Regional Crisis Line. Staff have provided a significant amount of outreach to the area. Plan for Staff to follow-up with the Sherriff's Office to ensure they have the information needed. Staff noted that the SRCL is the conduit for accessing mobile crisis outreach services.

Inquiry around historical accuracy of allocation budgets based on use of funds in each service category, and whether there are certain categories consistently underspent. 100% of budgeted funds for crisis services are expended each year. Similarly, budgets for residential services, interpreter services, administration, and training are nearly expended each year. Some categories deemed mandatory by the Health Care authority are routinely underspent. A very small allocation is set aside for these categories to mitigate underspending. Staff also monitor and adjust budgets around the third quarter of the assigned period for funds to reduce regional underspending.

Questions raised regarding AOT services, including how many individuals in the Salish region are engaged in services and of those, how many are first-time clients versus repeat clients; whether medication is a mandatory element of AOT services; and how do AOT service providers measure patient satisfaction. Staff will follow-up with data around individuals engaged in existing AOT services, which primarily support those on Least Restrictive Alternative (LRA) orders. Medication is determined on an individual basis as to whether it is compelled by the court or optional, however, medication management is a common element of LRA orders. Historically agencies providing services monitor patient satisfaction. SBH-ASO can include patient satisfaction as an element when rolling out new and more robust programming related to AOT.

Request for an independent, Peer-respected entity to provide development and monitoring of AOT services, ensuring an objective assessment of whether AOT and similar programs that compel medication are helpful to individuals. Staff noted that an external quality review organization (EQRO) has previously provided standalone oversight of programs in

Washington State and is in the process of being reestablished. Staff will provide more information about reinstatement of an EQRO as it comes available.

Question regarding whether there is inclusion of peer experience in suicide prevention training. Existing suicide prevention trainings provided by SBH-ASO have focused on fulfilling state licensing requirements for individuals in the field. Staff are looking into Question Persuade Refer (QPR) community-facing training. This was provided by SBH-ASO prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. SBH-ASO also provides support for Youth Mental Health First Aid training.

Recommendation for SBH-ASO and associated agencies to consider offering Alternatives to Suicide training, an internationally recognized training program led by people with lived experience related to suicide. Staff encouraged Board members to also share this information with the Suicide Prevention Task Force, as peer voice would be very beneficial. Staff will provide information about the Suicide Prevention Task Force event in Kitsap County for Suicide Awareness Day.

Staff provided an update on the Peer Pathfinders Transition from Incarceration pilot. The pilot supported funding for a .5 FTE peer support role to be added to existing jail transitions programs within the region. The program goal is to provide peer-focused support for 90 days pre-release and 120 days post-release.

MOTION: Mary Beth Lagenaur moved to approve the Federal Block Grant plans as submitted. Helen Havens seconded the motion. <u>Motion carried unanimously.</u>

> CO-RESPONDER RFP COMMITTEE

On June 8, 2023, SBH-ASO released a request for proposals (RFP) for a Behavioral Health Co-Responder Program within Clallam, Jefferson or Kitsap Counties. SBH-ASO intends to contract with a law enforcement or first responder (Fire or EMS) agency to provide a Behavioral Health Co-Responder Program staffed with a mental health professional within the 3-county region (Clallam, Jefferson, or Kitsap) served by Salish BH-ASO.

The proposal submission deadline was July 27, 2023. SBH-ASO is seeking volunteers to serve on the RFP review committee. The RFP review committee will receive copies of the proposals on August 7th. SBH-ASO will convene committee members between August 16 – August 22 to discuss the proposals and make funding recommendations to the Executive Board.

MOTION: Jon Stroup, Advisory Board Chair, approved Mary Beth Lagenaur, Helen Havens, Diane Pfeifle, and himself as volunteers for the Co-Responder RFP Review Committee.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

> EXPANSION OF ASSISTED OUTPATIENT TREATMENT

In 2022, the Legislature passed SHB1773 which directed the expansion of existing RCW regarding Assisted Outpatient Treatment. This bill also directed BH-ASOs to employ an

"Assisted Outpatient Treatment Program Coordinator" to oversee system coordination. Staff will provide an update on the regional planning around AOT Expansion.

Question about the volume of involuntary treatment time individuals spend in hospitals and facilities not designed for that type of treatment, such as emergency rooms. Staff will send a link to Board members for the state dashboard which contains information about the number of individuals not being served directly in a licensed psychiatric facility.

Comment regarding Treatment Advocacy Center (TAC) providing technical assistance for the expansion of AOT. The recovery peer movement opposes TAC and it is concerning that the organization has been selected by the State. Staff responded that TAC does not have control over the development of AOT expansion, nor drive treatment. TAC is only providing technical support as an entity that has some expertise and knowledge of how similar programs have been rolled out elsewhere in the United States.

> COMMUNITY RESOURCE FAIRS/BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SUMMITS

SBH-ASO is planning to facilitate several Community Resource Fairs during the Summer and Fall of 2023. The purpose of these Community Resource Fairs is to increase awareness of the role and resources of the SBH-ASO. Upcoming events are noted below, and flyers for each event are included as attachments.

Quilcene - August 1, 2023

4:00 pm – 6:00 pm Quilcene Community Center 294952 Hwy 101 Quilcene, WA 98376

Forks - September 19, 2023

4:00 pm – 6:00 pm Forks Community Hospital 550 5th Avenue Forks, WA 98331 Bremerton – October 3, 2023

4:00 pm – 6:00 pm Marvin Williams Rec Center 725 Park Avenue Bremerton, WA 98337

Chimacum - October 12, 2023

4:00 pm – 6:00 pm Tri-Area Community Center 10 West Valley Road Chimacum, WA 98325

A resource fair via Zoom will be scheduled for any community members who were unable to attend in-person events.

Staff will send out the PowerPoint shared at the Community Resource Fairs as well as a table outlining agencies that tabled at each event.

Question regarding what types of questions and concerns have been raised by community members at the events. The primary areas of concern expressed have been behavioral health and general support services for the aging population. Cross-conversation between agencies and community members has also been lively and valuable.

PUBLIC COMMENT

 Lori Fleming provided comment about the Quilcene event, stating that it was very well done, and it was exciting to hear the interaction that went on. The conversation went very organically but was very informational. It was exciting to see agencies and community members gather in a space where you wouldn't have expected it.

GOOD OF THE ORDER

• None.

ADJOURNMENT – Consensus for adjournment at 11:33 a.m.

ATTENDANCE

BOARD MEMBERS	STAFF	GUESTS
Present:	Stephanie Lewis, SBH-ASO Administrator	Kate Jasonowicz, Community Health Plan of Washington (CHPW)
Jon Stroup, Chair, SBH-ASO Advisory Board	Jolene Kron, SBH-ASO Deputy Administrator/Clinical Director	Shawn Hendel, Office of Behavioral Health Advocacy
Helen Havens, SBH-ASO Advisory Board	Nicole Oberg, SBH-ASO Program Specialist	Lori Fleming, Jefferson County CHIP
Diane Pfeifle, SBH-ASO Advisory Board	Doug Washburn, Kitsap County Human Services	G'Nell Ashley, Reflections Counseling Services Group
Mary Beth Lagenaur, SBH-ASO Advisory Board		
Sandy Goodwick, SBH-ASO Advisory Board		
Stormy Howell, SBH-ASO Advisory Board		
Excused: None		

NOTE: These meeting notes are not verbatim.



SALISH BH-ASO POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Policy Name: CODE OF CONDUCT Policy Number: CP304

Effective Date: 1/1/2020

Revision Dates:

Reviewed Date: 3/22/2023

Executive Board Approval Dates: 1/15/2021

PURPOSE

To outline the scope, responsibilities, operational guidelines, and activities employed by the Salish Behavioral Health Administrative Services Organization (SBH-ASO) to ensure maintenance of an environment that facilitates ethical decision making in accordance with federal and state laws and regulations.

POLICY

The SBH-ASO is committed to ensuring that all staff and associates conduct their activities professionally, ethically, and in compliance with all applicable state and federal statutes, regulations, and guidelines applicable to Federal Health Care programs and with all SBH-ASO Policies and Procedures.

SBH-ASO establishes this Code of Conduct to ensure that the SBH-ASO community, which includes employees (paid and volunteer) and board members, will know and understand expectation of behavior.

This Code is not meant to answer every question that might arise in daily activities; however, it does provide guidelines, direction, and resources that can be used to respond to matters and circumstances in the course of SBH-ASO duties. No set of guidelines, including these, can ever substitute for the sound judgment, common sense, and personal integrity required to meet the challenges of the job.

All SBH-ASO employees (paid and volunteer) and board members are responsible for understanding and adhering to this Code of Conduct. Inherent in this Code are the following principles by which all employees (paid and volunteer) and board members, as applicable, will abide:

Principle 1 - Legal Compliance and Ethical Business Practices

December 1, 2023

- 1.1 Business conducted complies with all relevant local, state, and federal laws, rules, and ordinances.
- 1.2 Business practices are conducted truthfully, fairly, and without deception.
- 1.3 Facilities and resources are used solely for the benefit of the SBH-ASO.
- 1.4 The SBH-ASO does not discriminate. The SBH-ASO believes in the fair and equitable treatment of Individuals, providers, employees (paid and volunteer), and board members.
- 1.5 SBH-ASO employees (paid and volunteer) and board members conduct all activities in accordance with the highest ethical standards.
- 1.6 SBH-ASO cooperates with government inquiries and investigations as required by law.

Principle 2 – Confidentiality

- 2.1 Employees (paid and volunteer) and board members abide by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), applicable policies and procedures, and 42 CFR Part 2. The confidentiality of all medically and clinically sensitive and personal and proprietary information is protected.
- 2.2 Proprietary information is protected and only shared with employees (paid and volunteer) and board members having a need to know such information to perform their job responsibilities.

Principle 3 - Avoid Real and Apparent Conflicts of Interest

- 3.1 All SBH-ASO employees (paid and volunteer) and board members are obligated to avoid situations or conduct that could influence (or appear to influence) objective decisions in the performance of assigned duties and responsibilities—or that could raise questions as to the honesty and integrity of SBH-ASO or negatively impact its reputation.
- 3.2 Business transactions with vendors, contractors, and other third parties shall be transacted free from offers or solicitation of gifts and favors or other improper inducements in exchange for influence or assistance in a transaction.

Principle 4 - Protection of Assets

4.1 All SBH-ASO employees (paid and volunteer) and board members will strive to preserve and protect the assets of SBH-ASO by making prudent and effective use of the SBH-ASO's resources and properly and accurately reporting its financial condition.

PROCEDURE

All employees (paid and volunteer) and board members are responsible to:

1. Know the existing laws, regulations, and ordinances relevant to the management of a multi-member government behavioral health system.

December 1, 2023

- 2. Conduct business in a professional manner that respects the rights and decisions of others, fosters cooperation and integration, respects diversity and is in the best interest of the SBH-ASO.
- 3. Professionally participate in the development, adoption, and adherence to relevant policies to be used in the management of the SBH-ASO.
- 4. Ensure the Individual's voice is heard and considered prior to making policy decisions.
- 5. Improve the public knowledge and perception of SBH-ASO and the SBH-ASO provider network.
- 6. This Code of Conduct Policy and Procedure, which clearly reflects the standards of conduct, will be reviewed on an annual basis and updated as necessary.
- 7. All SBH-ASO employees (paid and volunteer) and board members will review and attest to this Code of Conduct by signing an attestation annually.

MONITORING

- 1. Consequences for noncompliance by SBH-ASO employees (paid and volunteer) will rely on Kitsap County Personnel Policies and Procedures.
- 2. All parties are encouraged to suggest changes or additions to this Code. The Code augments, but does not limit, specific policies and procedures of the SBH-ASO.
- 3. Reports of any concerns may be made to a manager, supervisor, or to the Compliance Officer.
- 4. Managers and supervisors are further required to report allegations reported to them and to report any known or suspected violations of any laws, acts, statutes or regulations that they discover in the performance of their supervisory duties. Reports can be made to the Compliance Officer.
- 5. If you know of a violation but fail to report it, you could be considered a party to the violation.
- 6. Anyone who ever feels retaliated against for making a report should contact the Compliance Officer immediately.

December 1, 2023



Salish Behavioral Health Administrative Services Organization Code of Conduct Attestation

Attestation/Affirmation for all Board Members and Employees (paid and volunteer):

I attest and affirm that I will strictly follow the policies and guidelines of the Code of Conduct of the Salish Behavioral Health Administrative Services Organization (SBH-ASO) as they apply to me. My observance of these policies and guidelines is a condition of my working with or participating in the SBH-ASO.

- I hereby acknowledge that I have received, on the date below, a copy of the SBH-ASO Code of Conduct Policy and Procedure CP304.
- I have read the document, understand its meaning, and agree to conduct myself in accordance with these policies and guidelines.
- I understand that violations of the Code of Conduct, or failure to take action mandated by this Code of Conduct are grounds for disciplinary action.

Signature		
Print Name		
Date		

Reviewed: 3/22/2023